
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING August 14, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. INVOCATION – Chaplain Jon Powers, Ohio Wesleyan University 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
    
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on July 24, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
   
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Shade Tree 
Commission meeting held June 27, 2017. 

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Historic Preservation 
Commission meeting held June 28, 2017. 

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Airport Commission 
meeting held January 19, 2017.  

D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Planning Commission 
meeting held July 19, 2017.   

E. Resolution No. 17-50, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into an agreement for the Comprehensive, Continuing and 
Cooperative  (3-C) Transportation Planning Process with the Mid-
Ohio Regional Planning Commission (“MORPC”) acting as the 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for Central Ohio and the 
City of Delaware (“City”).  

 
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8 PRESENTATION 

A. Proclamation to recognize The Foot and Ankle Wellness Center and 
Delaware’s Day of Kindness 

B. Berkshire Township JEDD Expansion: Update, Bill Holtry, 
Berkshire Township Trustee 



2 
 

 
9. CONSIDERATION OF TRANSFER OF LIQUOR PERMIT 

A. La Cabana Mexican Restaurant LLC, DBA Mi Cerrito Mexican 
Restaurant, 19 E. Winter St., OH 43015, 1st floor only to Cerrito 
Potrillos LLC, DBA Mi Cerrito, 19 E. Winter St., OH 43015, 1st floor 
only.  Permit Class: D5 

 
10. 7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

17-54, an ordinance for Treplus Communities for approval of a Rezoning 
Amendment from B-3 (Community Business District) to B-3 PMU 
(Community Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) for Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on 
approximately 20.06 acres located on the north side of SR 37 just west of 
Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision.  

 
11. 7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

17-55, an ordinance for Treplus Communities for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment 
units on approximately 20.06 acres located on the north side of SR 37 
just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision. 

 
12. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-56, an ordinance for Treplus 

Communities for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for Burr 
Oak Commons containing 92 apartments units on approximately 20.06 
acres zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 just 
west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision.  

 
13.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-57, an ordinance for McDonald’s 

Real Estate Group for approval of an Amended Final Development Plan 
for an approximate 3,915 square foot McDonald’s on 2.0 acres zoned B-4 
(General Business District) and located at 2091 US 23 North.  

 
14. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-58, an ordinance for Jackson Real 

Estate and Development for approval of a Final Development Plan for a 
New Retail/Office Building on approximately 1.2 acres on property zoned 
B-3 PUD (Community Business District with a Planned Unit 
Development Overlay District) located on the out lot just west of Panera 
Bread.  

 
15. DISCUSSION regarding a Designated Outdoor Refreshment Area (DORA) 



3 
 

 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22 

(G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential 
by State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public 
purpose and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information 
related to a request for economic development assistance. 

 
17. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
18. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
19. ADJOURNMENT 

















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM E  DATE: 08/14/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-50 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT FOR THE COMPREHENSIVE, CONTINUING AND COOPERATIVE 
(3-C) TRANSPORTATION  PLANNING PROCESS WITH THE MID-OHIO 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION ("MORPC") ACTING AS THE 
METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) FOR CENTRAL OHIO AND 
THE CITY OF DELAWARE ("CITY"). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission “MORPC” has been designated by 
the Governor of Ohio as the metropolitan planning organization “MPO” in the 
Central Ohio region.  As MPO, MORPC oversees the administration of federal 
and state regulations for transportation planning initiatives that impact a 
several county district including Delaware County.  Activities included short 
and long range transportation planning for the region, in accordance with 
federal regulations, and guarantees that all members of the MPO adhere to the 
rules accordingly.  This contract is a housekeeping issue and is brought before 
Council to allow MORPC to update their records.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) requires 
acknowledgement of the 3C planning process by all member agencies through 
approval of the Comprehensive, Continuing and Cooperative (3C) 
Transportation Planning Process Agreement.  



 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):   
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Agreement 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-50 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR THE 
COMPREHENSIVE, CONTINUING AND COOPERATIVE 
(3-C) TRANSPORTATION  PLANNING PROCESS WITH 
THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
("MORPC") ACTING AS THE METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) FOR CENTRAL 
OHIO AND THE CITY OF DELAWARE ("CITY"). 

 
WHEREAS, various state grants and aids are available to MORPC for 

carrying out urban transportation planning activities; and 
 

WHEREAS, MORPC has been designated as the MPO for Central Ohio; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, metropolitan area boundaries in Ohio for federal planning 
provisions shall be determined by agreement between the MPO and the 
Governor of Ohio; and 
 

WHEREAS, metropolitan transportation planning activities come under 
the jurisdiction of the U.S. Department of Transportation ("USDOT") and are 
subject to the metropolitan planning requirements of 23 U.S.C. 134 and 
Section 5303 (or Section 8) of the Federal Transit Act, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 134 of Title 23 of the United States Code and 
Sections 1604(1), 1607(a) and 1607(c) Title 49 of the United States Code 
requires that each urbanized area, as a condition of the receipt of federal 
capital or operating assistance, have a continuing, cooperative and 
comprehensive transportation planning process that results in plans and 
programs that consider all transportation modes and supports metropolitan 
community development and social goals that lead to the development and 
operation of an integrated, intermodal transportation system that facilitates the 
efficient, economic movement of people and goods; and 
 

WHEREAS, the members of MORPC recognize that transportation 
planning and programming must be conducted as an integral part of and 
consistent with the comprehensive planning and development process, and 
that the process must involve the fullest possible participation by state 
agencies, local governments, private institutions, other appropriate groups and 
the general public; and 
 

WHEREAS, MORPC formulates, approves and periodically 
updates/amends a multimodal long-range transportation plan for the Planning 



Area which shall conform to all applicable federal requirements and work 
program content and schedules; and 
 

WHEREAS, MORPC formulates and approves the short-range 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for the Planning Area for a period of 
not less than 4 years and may include projects outside the Planning Area for 
information only; and 
 

WHEREAS, MORPC formulates and annually approves the metropolitan 
transportation planning work program, which identifies all transportation-
related planning activities to be funded with state and federal financial aids. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into an 
agreement with MORPC for the Comprehensive, Continuing and Cooperative 
(3-C) Transportation Planning Process.  
 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

















 
Statement from Jeff George, Zoning Inspector - Berkshire Township: 
 
A Township is a product of the Ohio Revised Code and as such cannot implement an Income tax 
on business without the cooperation of a Municipality.  In 2015 Berkshire Township and the 
City of Delaware agreed to our first Joint Economic Development District (JEDD).  The JEDD 
consisted of 215 acres and 60 of those acres contain the new Tanger Outlet Mall.  At that time 
it was agreed by both parties the City would have the first right of refusal for any additional 
JEDD in Berkshire Township.  As agreed, Berkshire Township approached Delaware City with an 
additional JEDD consisting of 574 acres. The existing and proposed JEDD areas total 789 acres 
on the east side of I-71 and is in Berkshire Township’s Commercial Zoning area.  The City of 
Delaware was chosen as a partner because of our mutual interest in 36/37 corridor and the 
traffic associated with that area. For Berkshire Township, the JEDD will provide additional 
revenue for the maintenance of infrastructure as the area develops.  For the City of Delaware, 
the JEDD provides a dedicated revenue for ongoing transportation improvements to the 36/37 
corridor within city limits.  













  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 08/14/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-54    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       AUGUST 14, 2017 AT 7:20 P.M. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO 
B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 
APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD SHOPPING CENTER AND 
JUST EAST OF LANTERN CHASE SUBDIVISION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on July 19, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-54 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO B-3 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK 
COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD 
SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN 
CHASE SUBDIVISION.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of July 19, 2017 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Treplus Communities 
from B-3 (Community Business District) to B-3 PMU (Community Business 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak Commons 
containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres located on the 
north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of 
Lantern Chase Subdivision (2017-1394). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Rezoning Amendment Rezoning Amendment for 
Treplus Communities from B-3 (Community Business District) to B-3 PMU 
(Community Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for 
Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 
acres located on the north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center 
and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision, is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 



 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 08/14/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-55    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       AUGUST 14, 2017 AT 7:20 P.M. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU  
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS 
CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD 
SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN CHASE SUBDIVISION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on July 19, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-55 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU  (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK 
COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD 
SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN 
CHASE SUBDIVISION.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of July 19, 2017 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak Commons containing 
92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres located on the north side of 
SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision (2017-1395).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak Commons containing 
92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres located on the north side of 
SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE:  08/14/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-56    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS 
CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES 
ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF 
LANTERN CHASE SUBDIVISION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1129 Procedures of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on July 19, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-56 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 
APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 
ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD SHOPPING 
CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN CHASE 
SUBDIVISION.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of July 19, 2017 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for Treplus 
Communities for Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on 
approximately 20.06 acres zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with 
a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 
just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision (2017-1396). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Preliminary Development Plan for Treplus 
Communities for Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on 
approximately 20.06 acres zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with 
a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 
just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
condition that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. A sidewalk shall be located on one side of the private streets as 
determined with the Final Development Plan. 

3. The City shall require the developer to construct and dedicate the bike 
path along the frontage of the subject property along SR 37 per the 



adopted Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 2017 and City Engineers 
requirements.   

4. The proposed apartment buildings shall achieve compliance with the 
design standards of the approved development text.  

5. The perimeter buffering along the northern and western property lines 
adjacent to the single family homes shall be a minimum 12 foot high 
continuous buffer consisting of evergreen trees (in a staggered 
alignment) and a 4 foot high earthen mound to buffer the single family 
residents to the north and west.  If the mound height is greater than 4 
feet, the trees on that portion of the mound may be smaller so long as 
the total is at least 12 feet high. However, in no case shall a tree be 
less than 6 feet in height regardless of mound height.  

6. The Tree Preservation Regulations in Chapter 1168 pertaining to tree 
replacement and preservation shall be addressed prior to or 
concurrent with the Final Development Plan approval. 

7. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade 
Tree Commission. 

8. A lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official. 

9. The exact location, size and materials of the monument signs shall be 
documented on the Final Development Plan. 

10. The Public Works Department shall provide residential pick-up 
service to this project using individual tip cart collection. The trash 
service will consist of tip carts picked up at the bottom of each 
driveway with service provided by the City of Delaware. In the event 
units are clustered around parking courts (3 such area are 
preliminary proposed), the developer shall provide a common concrete 
area adjacent to the primary street and the developer (or management 
company) shall ensure the tip carts are moved to this area for the 
designated pick up as with the other units and then moved back to 
the units themselves. 

11. The developer shall achieve compliance with City emergency access 
requirements prior to Final Development Plan approval.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 08/14/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-57    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MCDONALD’S REAL ESTATE GROUP FOR APPROVAL 
OF AN AMENDED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN APPROXIMATE 3,915 
SQUARE FOOT MCDONALD’S ON 2.0 ACRES ZONED B-4 (GENERAL 
BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 2091 US 23 NORTH.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.06 Development Plan Review 
Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 5-0 on August 2, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-57 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MCDONALD’S REAL ESTATE 
GROUP FOR APPROVAL OF AN AMENDED FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN APPROXIMATE 3,915 
SQUARE FOOT MCDONALD’S ON 2.0 ACRES ZONED 
B-4 (GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED 
AT 2091 US 23 NORTH.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of August 2, 2017 
recommended approval of an Amended Final Development Plan for McDonald’s 
Real Estate Group for an approximate 3,915 square foot McDonald’s on 2.0 
acres zoned B-4 (General Business District) and located at 2091 US 23 North 
(2017-1719).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the an Amended Final Development Plan for 
McDonald’s Real Estate Group for an approximate 3,915 square foot 
McDonald’s on 2.0 acres zoned B-4 (General Business District) and located at 
2091 US 23 North, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. McDonald’s shall provide a payment in lieu of constructing the sidewalk 
along US 23 per the City Engineer prior to engineering plan approval.  

3. McDonald’s shall allow for an access easement in the rear of their 
property aligned with the westernmost curb cut on the access road 
between McDonald’s and Wendy’s for a potential future backage road. 

4. The dumpster shall be screened from public view by a wall constructed of 
similar building materials that match the new building with wood doors 
painted or stained to match or compliment the overall building. 

5. Limestone piers approximately 3.5 feet high with a concrete cap and 
approximately 60 feet on center along US 23 shall be installed to 
supplement the landscaping, continue this theme along US 23, and 
comply with the Gateway & Corridor Plan.   



6. The Shade Tree Commission shall review and approve the submitted 
street tree plans.  

7. The limestone on the building, landscape columns, etc. shall be Delaware 
Blue Vein limestone (or cultured stone) or equivalent as approved by 
Staff.   

8. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building material color. 

9. All roof top mechanical equipment shall be completely screened from 
public view. 

10. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the zoning code shall be 
submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official during 
the Final Development Plan approval process.  All light fixtures shall be 
cut off style and the light poles shall be black. 

11. All signage shall achieve compliance with minimum zoning requirements.  
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



























































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 08/14/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-58    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR JACKSON REAL ESTATE AND DEVELOPMENT FOR 
APPROVAL OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A NEW RETAIL/OFFICE 
BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 1.2 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 PUD 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON THE OUT LOT JUST WEST OF PANERA 
BREAD. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.06 Development Plan Review 
Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 5-0 on August 2, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-58 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR JACKSON REAL ESTATE AND 
DEVELOPMENT FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A NEW RETAIL/OFFICE 
BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 1.2 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED B-3 PUD (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON THE OUT LOT 
JUST WEST OF PANERA BREAD.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of August 2, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Jackson Real Estate 
and Development of a New Retail/Office Building on approximately 1.2 acres 
on property zoned B-3 PUD (Community Business District with a Planned Unit 
Development Overlay District) located on the out lot just west of Panera Bread 
(2017-1714).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Final Development Plan for Jackson Real Estate 
and Development of a New Retail/Office Building on approximately 1.2 acres 
on property zoned B-3 PUD (Community Business District with a Planned Unit 
Development Overlay District) located on the out lot just west of Panera Bread, 
is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The developer for out lot #2 shall not be responsible for the Phase 2 
(building #2) intersection improvements in Ordinance 13-51. The 
development of out lot #3 (building #3) shall trigger the required 
improvements in Ordinance 13-51 due to the overall use of the site.  

3. The City shall require a $50,000 contribution from the developer of out 
lot #2 (building #2) to supplement the cost of  the developer of lot #3 
(building #3) future intersection improvement costs prior to final 
occupancy permit approval. 



4. The subject owner shall convert the existing right-in curb cut on the 
eastern portion of site along West Central Avenue into a right-in/right-
out curb cut. 

5. The required parking spaces for the new addition shall be reduced to 27 
parking spaces with 7 future parking spaces identified. The current land 
owner, at their sole expense, shall construct the future parking spaces 
when it is notified to do so by the City in its sole discretion. 

6. A cross easement agreement between the subject site, Panera Bread and 
Buehler’s Food Market shall be executed and recorded at the County to 
allow cross access between the aforementioned properties 

7. The limestone on the building shall be Delaware blue vein limestone or 
equivalent as approved by City Staff.  

8. The awnings on the front elevation shall be made of fabric. 
9. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 

match the adjacent building color. 
10. All roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened by a parapet wall or 

approved screening device. 
11. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material 

and color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  
12. A continuous row of shrubs shall be planted adjacent to West Central 

Avenue, Buehler’s private access drive to the north and the private 
access drive to the east. 

13. The Shade Tree Commission shall approve all landscaping plans.  
14. A comprehensive sign plan in accordance with the Buehler’s Rezoning 

Amendment and development text (Ordinance 13-50), the zoning code 
and the proposed building design to include designated sign areas and 
sizes, including lighting shall be required to be review and approved by 
staff. 

15. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official and all lighting must meet the requirements of the Planning & 
Zoning Code. 

16. The light poles shall be a maximum height of 28 feet and the light poles 
and fixtures shall be black in color. 

17. The light fixtures shall be gooseneck cut off style that matches the 
Panera Bread light fixtures. 

18. The owner shall be required to replant 12 caliper inches of trees or pay a 
tree replacement fee of $1,200 to achieve compliance with Chapter 1168 
Tree Preservation Regulations. 

19. The dumpster shall be screened from public view by a wall constructed of 
similar building materials that match the new building with wood doors 
painted or stained to match or compliment the overall building. 
 

 

 



SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













































 
 

 

Executive Summary 

Designated Outdoor Refreshment Areas “DORA” 

• In April of 2017, the ORC allowed municipalities under a population of 35,000 to apply to the 
State to create a DORA. 

• At the City Council meeting on May 22, 2017, Council directed staff to complete a DORA 
application per Section 4301.82 of the ORC. 

• The filing of the application must be advertised once per week for two consecutive weeks in a 
newspaper of general circulation.  Not earlier than 30 days, but not later than 60 days after the 
initial publication of the notice, City Council may approve or disapprove of the application by 
ordinance or resolution.   

Therefore, staff has proposed the following conditions for the DORA application: 

1) The boundaries for the DORA would be Sandusky Street from Spring Street to Central Avenue 
and on William and Winter Streets from Franklin Street to Union Street.     
 

2) It can only be implemented during a properly permitted Special Event which would include: 
 

a. Specific times for the DORA to be in effect not to exceed the application limitations 
b. City ratified public safety and sanitation plans, which will be event specific 

i. This includes costs that will be passed onto the event hosts, based on necessity 
 

3) Specially marked cups will be used by the qualifying liquor permit holders 
a. The design of these cups will be determined by the City 
b. Only wine and beer may be served in the cups to leave the establishment  
c. Participation in the DORA program is optional to the liquor permit holders 

 

4) Each special event host organization will have the option to participate in the DORA.   The 
decision of whether or not to participate will be made at the time of completing the Special 
Events Application. 

a. The City of Delaware staff may consider approval of additional events on a continual 
basis.  Additional events will be subject to local permitting processes and regulated by 
the approved boundaries and hours of operation established by the DORA application. 
 

5) Alcohol service must take place in the liquor permit holders establishment.  If a host organizer 
decides to include a beer truck or any conveyance of that fashion, then the host must follow the 
regulations as it pertains to that conveyance (i.e. proper fencing) 
 

 



  

 
 

 

APPLICATION TO THE DELAWARE CITY 

COUNCIL: 

DOWNTOWN DELAWARE DESIGNATED 

OUTDOOR REFRESHMENT AREA 
O.R.C. 4301.82 

            
The Office of the City Manager of the City of Delaware, Ohio, respectfully submits the 

following application to the Delaware City Council to approve and enact the Downtown 

Delaware Designated Outdoor Refreshment Area, in accordance to O.R.C. 4301.82. 

 

        Submitted 

       By: _______________________________ 

              R. Thomas Homan, City Manager  



 

 
 

2 

Table of Contents       Page 
 

1. Introduction and Submittal of Application       3 
 

2. Boundaries            4  
 
3. Nature of Establishments         5-8 
 
4. Qualifying Permit Holders        9-10 
 
5. Land Use & Zoning          11 
 
6. Public Health and Safety          12 
 
7. Signage             13 
 
8. Qualifying Special Events         14 

 
  



 

 
 

3 

I. INTRODUCTION AND SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION  
 
Effective April 30, 2017, Section 4301.82 of the Ohio Revised Code authorizes 
municipalities under 35,000 in population to create Designated Outdoor Refreshment 
Areas or “DORA’s”.  In order to consider creation of DORA, the City Manager must file an 
application with the City of Delaware City Council which meet certain statutory 
requirements.  The application filing must be advertised once per week for two 
consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation.  Not earlier than 30 days, but 
not later than 60 days after the initial publication of the notice, City Council may 
approve or disapprove of the application by ordinance or resolution.   
 
At its meeting on XXXXX, members of City Council directed staff to prepare the 
application for a DORA for downtown Delaware that includes Sandusky Street from 
Spring Street to Central Avenue and on William and Winter Streets from Franklin Street 
to Union Street that it could be brought before City Council for formal action.   
 
Therefore, the following application is being respectfully submitted to City Council for 
their consideration.  The application is for special events only.  Host entities of the 
various Special Events in the downtown will have to apply for a permit to hold an event 
downtown and then their plan for the DORA, Health and Safety will be reviewed and 
approved by staff. 
The application includes the following: 
 
Section II. A creation of a DORA on Sandusky Street from Spring Street to 

Central Avenue and on William and Winter Streets from Franklin 
Street to Union Street.     

 
Section III. A comprehensive list of all first floor businesses located in the 

proposed DORA district and a general description of their business 
 
Section IV. A list of all liquor permit holders in the proposed DORA district.  The 

ORC requires a minimum of four.  Staff has identified 21 in the 
proposed DORA district. 

 
Section V.  A land use and zoning map of the proposed DORA district. 
 
Section VI.  The Public Health and Safety Plan that will be implemented in the 

DORA district. 
 
Section VII.  A list of Special Events that have taken place in the proposed DORA 

district that are to be considered by City Council to determine if the 
DORA district will be permitted to be used by the host entities. 

 
Section VIII.  A preliminary design of the signs that will be placed at the DORA 

district boundaries during times the DORA is enacted.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

4 

 
 

II. BOUNDARIES 

In accordance to O.R.C. 4301.82(B)(1)(b), the boundaries of the DORA are 
depicted below: 
 

 
The proposed DORA district is north/ south Sandusky Street from Spring Street 
to Central Avenue and east/ west William and Winter Streets from Franklin 
Street to Union Street.  
 

 
  



 

 
 

5 

III. NATURE OF ESTABLISHMENTS 

In accordance with O.R.C. 4301.82(B)(2), the nature and types of establishments 
that will be located within the DORA are listed below. 
The types of establishments located within or adjacent to the DORA district are 
primarily businesses in the retail, dining, entertainment or services sectors. 
Examples of businesses on the first floor include: 
 

Establishment Name Address 

Retail 

Olivina Taproom 44 S. Sandusky St. 
Real Big Puppy 28B S. Sandusky St. 
Roys Toys 26 S. Sandusky St. 
The Stash House 24 S. Sandusky St. 
Breakaway Cycling 17 W. William St. 
Sherwin Williams 27 W. William St. 
DPS Antiques 17 N. Sandusky St. 
Edwin Loy Home/Stone & Sparrow 
Apparel 

27 N. Sandusky St. 

The Beauty Lab 37 N. Sandusky St. 
Pat’s Endangered Species Records 11 W. Winter St. 
Pure-n-Simple 23 W. Winter St. 
Gibson the Florist 19 W. Winter St. 
Fundamentals 25 W. Winter St. 
Secret Identity Comics 34 N. Franklin St. 
Neuhart Carts & Sports Collectibles 26 W. Winter St. 
Coffeeology 43 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware Diamonds 49 N. Sandusky St. 
Gameplay Unlimited & More 77 N. Sandusky St. 
BP 17 E. William St. 
Virgin/Boost Mobile 46 E. Winter St. 
Woodland Cigar Company 46 N. Sandusky St. 
Sandusky Street Antiques 30 N. Sandusky St. 
Second Sole Athletic Shoes 28 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware Antique Mall 18 N. Sandusky St. 
The Greater Gouda 12 N. Sandusky St. 
The Bare Bowl 6 N. Sandusky St. 
Toujours  8 N. Sandusky St. 
Choffey’s Coffee & Confections 17 W. Winter St. 

Dining and Adult Beverages  
Vito’s Wine Bar 30 S. Sandusky St. 
Clancey’s 40 S. Sandusky St. 
Opa Pub & Grill 18 S. Sandusky St. 
Flying Pig Alehouse 12 S. Sandusky St. 



 

 
 

6 

Subway 16 S. Sandusky St. 
The Backstretch 14 S. Sandusky St. 
Amato’s Woodfired Pizza 6 S. Sandusky St. 
12 West 12 W. William St. 
Barley Hopsters 1 N. Sandusky St.  
J. Gumbo’s 9 N. Sandusky St. 
Mohio Pizza 23 N. Sandusky St. 
Whit’s Frozen Custard 31 N. Sandusky St. 
Staas Brewing Company 31 W. Winter St. 
Son of Thurman 5 N. Sandusky St. 
Restoration Brew Worx 25 N. Sandusky St. 
Bun’s 14 W. Winter St. 
Jimmy John’s 47 N. Sandusky St. 
Chelley Belly 59 N. Sandusky St. 
Roops Brothers Bar 17 N. Union St. 
1808 American Bistro 29 E. Winter St. 
Mi Cerrito 19 E. Winter St. 
Veritas 15 E. Winter St. 
Old Bag of Nails 66 N. Sandusky St. 
Fresh Start Café & Bakery 24 N. Sandusky St. 
Hamburger Inn 16 N. Sandusky St. 
Typhoon Asian Fusion Bistro 10 N. Sandusky St. 
Solar Saloon* 2 N. Sandusky St. 
Home Slice’s Bakery & Café  2 N. Sandusky St. 
                                                                   Services 
Ace Cash Express 19 S. Sandusky St. 
Sandusky Street Barber 28 S. Sandusky St. #A 
The Upper Cut Barber Shop 9 E. William St. 
Woody’s Head Shed 10 S. Sandusky St. 
1820 Collective 18 W. William St. 
Lawrence Law Office 24 W. William St. 
St. Mark’s Lutheran Church 28 E. William St.  
RE/MAX Allegiance 11 N. Sandusky St. 
Workman Law Firm 35 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware General Health District 3 W. Winter St. 
Periwinkle Photography 15 ½ W. Winter St. 
Firestone Brehm Hanson Wolf Real 
Estate Attorneys 

15 W. Winter St. 

Edward Jones Investments 15 N. Sandusky St. 
Title First Agency 13 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware County Board of Realtors 21 N. Sandusky St. 
The Hair Studio 33 N. Sandusky St. 
The Law Office of Brian Jones 35 N. Sandusky St. 
Workman Law Firm 35 N. Sandusky St. 



 

 
 

7 

First Commonwealth Bank 41 N. Sandusky St. 
Cross Strings 11 ½ W. Winter St. 
Back Door Hair Designs 11 W. Winter St. 
Robinson Funeral Home 32 W. Winter St. 
Martin Shoe Repair 28 W. Winter St. 
Allstate Insurance 51 N. Sandusky St. 
Chase Bank 61 N. Sandusky St. 
iforce Staffing 67 N. Sandusky St. 
Emergency Bail Bonds 73 N. Sandusky St. 
Kendrick Law Office 79 N. Sandusky St. 
Fifth Third Securities 15 W. Central Ave. #105 
Vatsures & Vatsures Attorneys at Law 15 W. Central Ave. #205 
McCoy Law 25 W. Central Ave. 
Gordon Law Office 82 N. Franklin St. 
Northpoint Financial 4 W. Winter St. 
Evolve Bank & Trust 51 N. Sandusky St. 
Smudz Insurance Group 55 N. Sandusky St. 
Razor’s Edge Barber Shop 71 N. Sandusky St. 
Jontaar Creative Studios LLC 81 N. Sandusky St. 
Equity Resources 15 W. Central Ave. #101 
PVS Corporation 15 W. Central Ave. #203 
Delaware Counseling Services 21 W. Central Ave. 
Barnes & Co. Certified Public 
Accountants 

15 W. Central Ave. #201 

Massage Therapy Innovation, LLC 58 N. Franklin St. 
Spa retreat 56 N. Franklin St. 
Law Office of Douglas W. Warnock Co. 20 E. Central Ave. 
Law office of Agee, Clymer, Mitchell & 
Laret 

20 E. Central Ave. 

Leroy’s Service Center 40 E. Central Ave. 
Tiger Lee’s Martial Arts Studio 53 N. Union St. 
Amanda Plumbing Sewer & Drain 39 E. William St. 
Adecco Staffing 45 E. Winter St. 
American Family Insurance 44 E. Winter St. 
Dumbaugh Insurance 13 E. Winter St. 
State Farm Insurance 7 E. Winter St. 
PNC Bank 40 N. Sandusky St. 
Pyramid Health Services 9 E. Winter St. 
Hilborn Insurance 42 N. Sandusky St. 
OneMain Financial 44 N. Sandusky St. 
Owens Law Office 46 N. Sandusky St. 
Manos, Martin & Pergram Co., LPA 50 N. Sandusky St. 
Howard Hanna 52 N Sandusky St. 
Fidelity Federal Savings & Loan 60 N. Sandusky St. 



 

 
 

8 

Price Realty 68 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware Vision Care 34 N. Sandusky St. 
Green Door Salon 4 N. Sandusky St.  

Entertainment 
The Strand Theatre 28 E. Winter St. 

Other 
  
Delaware City Hall 1 S. Sandusky St. 
Colony House 21 S. Sandusky St.  
Delaware County Convention & Visitors 
Bureau 

34 S. Sandusky St. 

Delaware Area Chamber of Commerce 32 S. Sandusky St. 
William Street Methodist Church 28 W. William St. 
Sunrise Dwellings II Inc. 30 N. Franklin St. 
Knights of Pythias 9 W. Winter St. 
Creative Foundations 57 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware Moose Lodge 1167 80 N. Sandusky St. 
Central Ohio Symphony 24 E. Winter St. 
Gallery 22 22 E. Winter St. 
Main Street Delaware, Inc. 20 E. Winter St.  
Delaware County Republican 
Headquarters 

48 N. Sandusky St. 

St. Mark’s Evangelical Lutheran Church 28 E. William St. 
 
*The Solar Saloon is the only second floor establishment listed because it has a 
liquor permit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

9 

 
IV. QUALIFYING PERMIT HOLDERS 

 
In accordance to O.R.C. 4301.82(B)(3), the DORA will encompass not fewer than 
four qualified permit holders. 
 
Delaware has identified 21 qualified permit holders that will likely be included 
in the DORA:  
 

Permit 
Number 

Business 
Name 

DBA Class Street Address 

04510260001 BARLEY 
HOPSTERS 
LLC 

Barley Hopsters & 
Patio 

D5 1 N. Sandusky St. 

9133496 TYPHOON 
ASIAN 
FUSION 
BISTRO INC 

Typhoon Asian Bistro D5, D6 10  N. Sandusky St. 
Unit 100 BSMT & 
Patio 

2791900 FLYING PIG 
ALE HOUSE 
LLC 

The Flying Pig 
Alehouse 

D5 12 S. Sandusky St. 

0264226 ARKASA INC Bun’s Restaurant & 
Bakery 

D5, D6 12-14 W. Winter St. 
& Patio 

6272704 MEYERS 
STRETCH INC 

The Backstretch and 
Patio 

D1, D2, 
D3, D3A 

14 S. Sandusky St. 

3746533 EVA LLC Vina Veritas Tavern D5, D6 15 E. Winter St. 
5531553 MARIA FOOD 

SERVICE LLC 
Opa Pub & Grill  D1, D2, 

D3 
18 S. Sandusky St. 

4949246 LA CABANA 
MEXICAN 
RESTAURANT 
LLC 

Mi Cerrito Mexican 
Restaurant 

D5, D6 
(pending) 

19 E. Winter St. 1st 
FLR ONLY 

9115185 12 WEST LLC 12 West D5, D6 12 W. William St.  
8837576 DONALD C 

TEMPLE 
Solar Saloon D5, D6 

(Pending) 
2 1/2 N. Sandusky 
St. 

6082470 MOHIO PIZZA 
CO LLC 

Mohio Pizza D5 23 N. Sandusky St. 

2847816 FOUR FAT BS 
LLC 

Restoration Brew Worx A1A, A1C, 
D6 

25 N. Sandusky St. & 
Patio 

8633304 STRAND 
THEATRE & 
CULTURAL 
ARTS ASSN 
INC 

Strand Theatre D1, D3 26-28 E. Winter St. 



 

 
 

10 

1890265 DELSTEAK 
LLC 

1808 American Bistro 
& Patio 

D1, D2, 
D3, D3A, 
D6 

29 E. Winter St. 1st  
FL & BSMT 

9289273 VITOS WINE 
BAR LLC 

Vito's Wine Bar, LLC D1, D2, 
D3 

30 S. Sandusky St. 

8371348 SOLZA INC Clancy's Pub   40 S. Sandusky St. 
6539109 OLIVINA 

TAPROOM 
LLC 

Olivina Taproom C2, D6 
(pending) 

44 S. Sandusky St. 

2111192 DEVOL 
HOLDINGS 
LLC 

Son of Thurman D1, D2, 
D3, D6 
(pending) 

5 N. Sandusky St. 

71155910020 MICHAEL R 
PURDUM 

Old Bag of Nails D5, D6 66 N. Sandusky St. & 
Patio 

8003650 740 GROUP 
LLC 

 
Amato’s Woodfired 
Pizza 

D1, D2, 
D3, D6 
(pending) 

6-8 S. Sandusky St. 
1st  FL & Patio ONLY 

52849751167 LOOM 
LODGE1167 
DELAWARE 

Moose Lodge D4, D6 80 N. Sandusky St. 

 
 
In accordance with O.R.C. 4301.82(F)(1)©, the hours of operation for the DORA district are: 
 
 

Day Start Time End Time 
Monday 9:00 a.m. 10:00 p.m. 
Tuesday 9:00 a.m. 10:00 p.m. 

Wednesday 9:00 a.m. 10:00 p.m. 
Thursday 9:00 a.m. 10:00 p.m. 

Friday 9:00 a.m. 11:00 p.m. 
Saturday 9:00 a.m. 11:00 p.m. 
Sunday Noon 10:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 

11 

V. LAND USE & ZONING 
 
In accordance to O.R.C. 4301.82(B)(4), the uses of land within DORA are zoned 
B-2 (Central Business District) or B-3 (Community Business District) and are in 
accord with the City of Delaware’s master zoning plan: 
 

Zoning Districts 

 
 

 



 

 
 

12 

 
VI. PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY 

The City of Delaware seeks to use a DORA district in its historic downtown for 
special events only.  All host entities for special events are required to develop 
and submit for approval a public health and safety plan along with their 
special event application.  The proposed plan is reviewed by City staff and 
others with interest along with the host entity.  Only once the plan is agreed 
upon and all stipulations met, will a permit be issued.   
 
City staff will ensure that adequate sanitation, signage and public safety 
requirements are met for each unique event.  The necessity for portable 
bathrooms, handicap accessibility, pedestrian mobility, police fire and 
emergency ingress and egress, crowd control, DORA boundary management 
and sanitation management will be addressed.  Event organizers will be 
required to pay for special duty officers or overtime for public service or 
safety workers if necessary to ensure adequate health, public and safety 
requirements. 
 
It is the City’s intent that only wine and beer may be carried through a DORA 
quadrant. 
 
The Chief of Police will dictate at DORA events the need for additional police 
officers, at the expense of the host entity and what containers and their 
markings will be for anyone serving during a DORA event.    
 

  



 

 
 

13 

VII. SIGNAGE 
In order to clearly mark the boundaries of the DORA district, signs similar to 
the design below will be placed at the boundaries for the special event.  The 
location and number of signs will be determined by the City Staff through the 
Special Events permitting process. 
 
Signage Example: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

14 

 
VIII. QUALIFYING SPECIAL EVENTS 

 
DORA district Special Events may include, but are not limited to the following: 
 

Special Event Date Host Host Response 
First Fridays May through October 

and December 
Main Street Yes 

New Moon Half 
Marathon 

May Greenswell Yes 

Classic Car Show July Performance Auto No in 2017 
Maybe in 2018 

 
*Inclusion as an eligible DORA event does not necessitate participation.  Each host organization will have 
the opportunity to decide if the event will participate in the DORA process.  The decision of whether or 
not to participate will be made at the time of completing the Special Events Application. 
 
The City of Delaware staff may consider approval of additional events on a continual 
basis.  Additional events will be subject to local permitting processes and regulated by 
the approved boundaries and hours of operation established in this ordinance. 

 
 



City Manager Report 20170814 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: August 14, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 July 18 

* Stand Board Meeting 
July 20 
* Police Officer Swearing in Ceremony 
July 24 
* City Council 
July 25 
* Berkshire JEDD Meeting 
July 27 
* Ironman Team Captain’s Meeting 
August 1 
* Delaware South NCA 
August 7 
* Rotary 
August 10 
* Delaware Northern NCA 

 
4. Required Reading 
 Delaware Fire Department June 2017 Monthly Report 
 
 





CONTRACT APPROVAL – August 2, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Franklin University Preferred Partner Agreement N/A City Manager 
Shelly and Sands Inc. 09/17/17 Pavement Maintenance 

Program 
$998,691.42 Public Works 

Ohio Wesleyan University Agreement for Emergency Medical 
Services 

$116.20 Fire 
Department 

Guide Studio Industrial Park Wayfinding Plan 
Phase 2 

$4,800.00 Planning 

     



Delaware Fire Department 

June 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 

 

 
 

Major Incidents 

 June 9, N. Union St, Structure Fire – Porch Fire 

 June 13, Acme Rd, Structure Fire  

 June 22, Sunbury Rd., MVC, Semi On-side 

 June 23, Troy Twp. Structure Fire 

 June 24, Troy Twp. Water Rescue 

 June 26, Strathwick, Structure Fire 

 

Other Activities 

 Station Tours 

 Smoke Detector/Battery Installs 

 NOW Festival 

 Block Parties 

 Touch–a-Truck 

 Safety Town 

 SourcePoint – Education Program 

 CPR Programs (2) 

 

2010 Fire Levy Status 

 Equipment - Continuing 

 Committee has reviewed the pre-construction drawings on the new Quint Fire Truck. 

Members of the committee attended the Pre-Construction meeting April 10-13. Truck was 

ordered in September and delivery is expected in October 2017. 

 Three new Paramedic trucks were placed in-service and are operating at all of our Fire 

Stations. 

 Staff cars have been replaced in 2012-2016. This has included the implementation of 

retired police vehicles for station and inspector cars. 

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2014 2015 2016 2017 June Year-to-Date % Year to Date % of Budget (+ / -)

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget Completed Projected for Year

Total number of incidents 5,173 5,380 5,891 5,988 425 2,820 47.09% 50.00% -2.91%

     Fire 101 126 107 98 12 62 63.27% 50.00% 13.27%

     Rupture/Explosion 3 1 5 3 0 5 166.67% 50.00% 116.67%

     EMS 4,047 4,254 4,658 4,785 307 2,160 45.14% 50.00% -4.86%

     Hazardous Conditions 124 135 150 151 11 76 50.33% 50.00% 0.33%

     Service Calls 141 155 128 129 29 80 62.02% 50.00% 12.02%

     Good Intent 162 155 213 192 11 127 66.15% 50.00% 16.15%

     False Calls 589 541 621 619 55 301 48.63% 50.00% -1.37%

     Severe Weather 0 1 3 4 0 2 50.00% 50.00% 0.00%

     Other 6 12 6 7 0 7 100.00% 50.00% 50.00%

Number of medical transports 2,586 2,742 2,836 2,900 165 1,291 44.52% 50.00% -5.48%

Narcan Administration 55 43 64 64 4 27 42.19% 50.00% -7.81%

Percent of priority calls w/ response within 6 min 68% 74% 71% 70% 67% 72% 70.00% 50.00% 2.00%

Percent working structure fires ERF of 15 FF 

within 12 minutes
78% 85% 100% 70% 100% 100% 142.86% 50.00% 70.00%

     # Structure Fires 9 13 18 10 2 10 100.00% 50.00% 50.00%

     # Structure with personnel and Times 7 11 18 7 2 10 142.86% 50.00% 92.86%

Number of commercial inspections conducted 1,473 1,365 1,345 1,450 152 990 68.28% 50.00% 18.28%

Number of plans reviewed within five days 100% 100% 100% 100% N/A 100% 100.00% 50.00% 100.00%

Number of fires greater than $10,000 8 12 9 10 1 4 40.00% 50.00% -10.00%

Number of fires of suspicious nature 5 6 3 4 1 1 25.00% 50.00% -25.00%

Hours of Training 13,335 10,977 12,454 10,000 1,000 6,791 67.91% 50.00% 17.91%



Delaware Fire Department 

June 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 

 The new engine was delivered and placed in-service in April 2013. 

 The new paramedic truck was delivered and was placed in-service in January 2013. 

 The new ladder truck was delivered and was placed in-service in April 2012. 

 Personnel - Continuing 

 Agility test was conducted for the hiring of Full-time and Part-time personnel. 

 PT-FF Blackmore, Watson and Young began employment in May. 

 FF Taylor Von Lohr completed his paramedic class and certification at Grant Medical 

center. Taylor graduated with honors and graduated at the top of his class on April 3, 2017. 

 40 potential new hire candidate names were pulled on October 31, to advance to the 

application and agility process. Additional Agility Testing took place in December 2016. 

Background checks have been completed for the candidates and interviews are scheduled 

with the Fire Chief for the week of April 3. 

 Firefighters Kehlmier and Whitley began full-time work in January. These positions were 

filled due to resignations. FF Kehlmier and Whitley were previously Part-time Firefighters 

with our Department. 

 The total amount of new personnel hired since the new levy is 36. Some of these positions 

have filled open positions. 

 New Fire Station 304 - Continuing 

 Demolition of the existing house on the Cheshire Rd house began. 

 Mull & Weithman and 2K Construction were selected as the firms to design and build Fire 

Station 304. 

 Request for Qualifications for the design build construction was posted and were received 

on January 30.  

 October 24, took action to annex the St 304 property. Lot surveying took place for St 304. 

 Property was purchased in 2011 at 821 Cheshire Rd. The property was leased out and the 

lease moved out on November 30, 2013. In 2014, we plan to begin the analysis and plans 

for an anticipated groundbreaking in 2016. 

 The opening of this Station is dependent on the increased staffing. This will be 

accomplished through the use of Part-Time personnel to supplement the staffing. The Part-

Time personnel will be backfilling the open positions caused by personnel scheduled 

leaves. 

 Fire Station 303 - Completed 

 On September 27, 2013 we began operation 24/7. The Fire Station was dedicated on 

October 19, 2013. 

 

 

 

  



Delaware Fire Department 

June 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 

 

Council for Older Adults – Monthly Report on the Firehouse Coordinator 

 

 

  



Delaware Fire Department 

June 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 

 


	01 20170814 agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20170724 council minutes
	03 20170627 shade tree minutes
	04 20170628 hpc minutes
	05 20170119 airport minutes
	06 20170719 planning minutes
	07 fact sheet res 17-50 MORPC 3C Process
	08 res 17-50 MORPC 3C Planning Process
	09 res 17-50 morpc agreement
	09 Statement for JEDD2
	10 Delaware JEDD Map 2
	11 MiCerrito Liquor Permit
	12 Mi Cerrito Liquor Background
	13 fact sheet ord 17-54, rezoning Burr Oak Commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON A...

	14 ord 17-54 , rezone amend burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON A...

	15 2017-1394-1396 PC Treplus Communities-Burr Oak
	16 fact sheet ord 17-55, CUP burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU  (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE NORTH SI...

	17 ord 17-55 , CUP burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU  (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE NORTH SI...

	18 fact sheet ord 17-56, PDP burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) A...

	19 ord 17-56, pdp burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) A...

	20 fact sheet ord 17-57, McDonalds US 23 North AFDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR MCDONALD’S REAL ESTATE GROUP FOR APPROVAL OF AN AMENDED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN APPROXIMATE 3,915 SQUARE FOOT MCDONALD’S ON 2.0 ACRES ZONED B-4 (GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 2091 US 23 NORTH.

	21 ord 17-57, McDonalds US 23 North AFDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR MCDONALD’S REAL ESTATE GROUP FOR APPROVAL OF AN AMENDED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN APPROXIMATE 3,915 SQUARE FOOT MCDONALD’S ON 2.0 ACRES ZONED B-4 (GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 2091 US 23 NORTH.

	22 PC 2017-1719 McDonalds
	23 fact sheet ord 17-58,  Jackson Retail Development FDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR JACKSON REAL ESTATE AND DEVELOPMENT FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A NEW RETAIL/OFFICE BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 1.2 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 PUD (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DI...

	24 ord 17-58, Jackson Retail Development FDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR JACKSON REAL ESTATE AND DEVELOPMENT FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A NEW RETAIL/OFFICE BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 1.2 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 PUD (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DI...

	25 PC 2017-0714 Jackson Retail Staff Report
	26 DORA Executive Summary
	27 DORA Application Final Draft
	28 city managers report 20170814
	29 August Calender
	30 20170802 contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – August 2, 2017
	2017
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	City Manager
	N/A
	Franklin University
	Preferred Partner Agreement

	Public Works
	$998,691.42
	Shelly and Sands Inc.
	09/17/17 Pavement Maintenance Program

	Fire Department
	$116.20
	Ohio Wesleyan University
	Agreement for Emergency Medical Services

	Planning
	$4,800.00
	Guide Studio
	Industrial Park Wayfinding Plan Phase 2


	31 June 2017-fire report

